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BOARD'S REPORT 
 

 
To the Members of Edel Finance Company Limited, 
 
Your Directors hereby present the 36th Board’s Report on the business, operations and state of 
affairs of the Company together with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended  
March 31, 2025: 
 
 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 
I. Standalone Financial Performance: 

(Rs. in million) 
 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Total Income 6,867.04 4,046.85 

Total Expenditure 6,822.23 3,904.37 

Profit before Tax 44.81 142.48 

Provision for Tax (including deferred tax 
benefit/(expense) 

77.20 (649.00) 

Profit / (Loss) after Tax (32.39) 791.48 

Other comprehensive Income  0.07 2.31 

Total comprehensive Income / (Loss)  (32.32) 793.79 

Earnings per share (Rs.)  
(Face Value of Rs. 100 each):- 

  

      Basic (0.26) 7.75 

      Diluted (0.26) 7.75 

 



 

 

 
 
II. Consolidated Financial Performance: 

(Rs. in million) 
 
Particulars 

 
2024-25 2023-24

Total Income 33,774.61 18,065.43

Total Expenditure 27,050.47 20,078.29

Profit / (Loss) before share in profit of associates 
and tax 

6,724.14 (2,012.86)

Share in Profit of associates 3,917.08 333.78

Profit / (Loss) before tax 10,641.22 (1,679.08)

Provision for Tax (including deferred tax 
benefit/(expense)  

892.63 (1,067.01)

Profit / (Loss) after tax for the year 9,748.59 (612.07)

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) 14,244.90 (120.43)

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (4,496.31) (732.50)

Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to:- 

Owners of the parent 9,608.27 (559.78)

Non-Controlling interests 140.32 (52.29)

Other Comprehensive Income /(Loss) attributable 
to:- 

Owners of the parent (14,180.97) (120.12)

Non-Controlling interests (63.93) (0.31)

Total Comprehensive Income /(Loss) attributable 
to:- 

Owners of the parent (4,572.70) (679.90)

Non-Controlling interests 76.39 (52.60)

Earnings per Equity Share (Rs.)  
(Face Value of Rs.100 each):- 

Basic 76.30 (5.47)

Diluted 76.30 (5.47)

 
 



 

 

 
INFORMATION ON THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY 
 
The Company is registered as Core Investment Company with the Reserve Bank of India.   
 
The information on the operational and financial performance, is given in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report, forming part of this Report.   
 
 
Consolidated Financial Performance 
 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company earned income was Rs.33,774.61  
million as compared to Rs. 18,065.43 million during the previous year. The profit after tax for the 
year was Rs. 9,748.59 million as against loss of Rs. 612.07 million in the previous year. 
 
Standalone Financial Performance 
 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company earned income was Rs. 6,867.04 
million as compared to Rs. 4,046.85 million during the previous year. The loss after tax for the 
year was Rs. 32.39 million as against profit of Rs. 791.48 million in the previous year. 
 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company sold its shareholding in Nuvama 
Wealth Management Limited for an aggregate amount of Rs. 12,548.34 million. 
 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The financial statements (both consolidated and standalone) have been prepared in accordance 
with the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder (‘the Act’) and the applicable 
Accounting Standards and forms part of this Report. 
 
The Auditors’ Report issued by M/s. Tambi & Jaipurkar, Chartered Accountants, the Auditors of 
the Company on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 is unmodified and is 
annexed to the financial statements. 
 
 
SUBSIDIARIES  
 
With effect from September 3, 2024, Allium Corporate Services Private Limited (Allium) became a 
direct subsidiary of the Company. With effect from April 17, 2025 Allium ceased to be a 
subsidiary of the Company.  
 
With effect from March 4, 2025, Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited has ceased to be wholly 
owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited and, consequently of the 
Company.   
 



 

 

The salient features of the financial statements of each of the subsidiaries as required under the 
Act is provided in the financial statements in Form AOC-1. The financial statements of the 
subsidiaries are available on the website of the Company at www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. 
Any Member interested in obtaining a copy of financial statements of the subsidiaries may write 
to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.   
 
 
FINANCE 
 
During the year under review, the Company had raised funds by issue of Non-convertible 
Debentures (NCDs) and Commercial Papers on private placement basis. 
 
Some of the NCDs are listed on BSE Limited.  
 
 
LOANS, INVESTMENTS AND GUARANTEES 
 
Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided are 
reported in the financial statements, forming part of this Annual Report. 
 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
All the Related Party Transactions entered by the Company during the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025, were at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business. The Company has 
not entered into transactions with the Promoters, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, which 
may have potential conflict of interest with the Company and its subsidiaries. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations’), the Company has formulated the Related Party 
Transactions Policy, which is available on the website of the Company at 
www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. 
 
The particulars of contracts or arrangements with the related parties as prescribed in Section 188 
of the Act and forming part of this Report are provided in Form AOC-2 annexed as Annexure I to 
this Report. The Related Party Transactions as required under the applicable Accounting 
Standards have been reported in the financial statements. 
 
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
(i) Independent Directors 
 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the 
Independent Directors have given a declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as 
provided in the said Section and in the Listing Regulations.  
 



 

 

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors are persons of integrity and possess 
relevant expertise, experience and proficiency. 
 
 

(ii) Reappointment of Directors 
 
Pursuant to the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the 
Board had on March 21, 2022, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company 
appointed Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar (DIN:00005164) as an Independent Director for the first 
term of three years till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company 
to be held for the financial year ending March 31, 2025. 
 
 
Considering the experience, expertise, contribution made by Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar,  
the Board, based on the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, 
has subject to the approval of the Members, re-appointed Mr. Phatarphekar for the second 
term of 5 years. The necessary Resolution in this regard is being placed for the approval of the 
Members.  
 
 

(iii) Retirement by rotation  
 
Ms. Ananya Suneja (DIN:07297081), retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting and, being eligible, has offered herself for re-appointment. 
 

 
NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD 
 
During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Board met 4 times. The details of the Board Meetings 
and the attendance of the Directors at the Meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance 
Report, which forms part of this Report. 
 
REMUNERATION POLICY 
 
The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy pursuant to Section 178 of the Act and the 
Listing Regulations. The Policy is provided as Annexure II to this Report. 
 
 
EVALUATION OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD 
 
A Board Evaluation Policy (the Policy) for evaluating the performance of the Board, its 
Committees, the Executive Directors, the Non-executive Directors and the Independent Directors 
has been adopted by the Company. 
 
The Policy inter alia provides the criteria for performance evaluation such as Board effectiveness, 
quality of discussion, contribution at the Meetings, business acumen, strategic thinking, time 
commitment, relationship with the stakeholders, corporate governance practices, review of the 



 

 

terms of reference of the Committees and the contribution of the Committees to the Board in 
discharging its functions, etc. 

 
A separate Meeting of the Independent Directors was held wherein the annual performance of 
the Non-Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole (including the Committees) 
in terms of the provisions of the Act, the Listing Regulations and the Guidance Note issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India in this regard, was discussed. 
 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. The Company’s internal control system is designed to ensure operational efficiency, 
protection and conservation of resources, accuracy and promptness in financial reporting and 
compliance with the laws and regulations. The internal control system is also supported by an 
internal audit process. The Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the Company have 
confirmed that the internal financial control framework is operating efficiently and effectively.  
 
The risk management is an integral part of the Company’s business strategy that seeks to 
minimise adverse impact on business objectives and capitalise on opportunities. The Group Risk 
Management Committee oversees the risk management framework of the Company through 
regular and proactive intervention by identifying risks and formulating mitigation plans. Further 
details are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis section forming part of this 
Report. 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
The Audit Committee comprises of the following Independent Directors of the Company: 
 

Dr. Vinod Juneja (Chairman) 
Mr. Atul Ambavat  
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar. 

 
Further details of the Audit Committee are provided in the Corporate Governance Report 
forming part of this Report. 
 
 
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM 
 
The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to report genuine concerns/grievances. The 
Policy is available on the website of the Company at: www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. 
 
The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimisation of the persons who use the 
vigil mechanism. The vigil mechanism is overseen by the Audit Committee. 
 
 
 



 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 
 

The  Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises of the following Directors of the 
Company: 
 

Ms. Vidya Shah  – Executive Director 
Ms. Ananya Suneja  – Executive Director 
Mr. Atul Ambavat  – Independent Director. 

 
A report on the Corporate Social Responsibility in accordance with the provisions of the Section 
135 of the Act is provided in Annexure III to this Report. The CSR Policy is available on the 
website of the Company at: www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. 

 
Further, details of the CSR Committee are provided in the Corporate Governance Report which 
forms part of this Report.  

 
 
AUDITORS 
 
The Members at the 35th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on September 30, 
2024, had appointed M/s. Tambi & Jaipurkar, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 
115954W) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a term of 3 years, to hold the office until 
the conclusion of 38th AGM to be held in the year 2027. 
 
 
 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 
M/s. Sahani & Kothari Associates, Company Secretaries, were appointed as the Secretarial 
Auditors to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. The Report 
of the Secretarial Auditors is provided as Annexure IV to this Report. The Secretarial Audit 
Report is unmodified. 
 

 
PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
 
The Company has a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace. No 
cases were reported during the year under review. There were no complaints pending as on 
March 31, 2025. The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of 
Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
 



 

 

 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS/ OUTGO 
 

A. Conservation of energy 
 

i. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy – The operations of the Company are 
not energy intensive. However, adequate measures have been taken for conservation of 
energy wherever possible. 
 

ii. The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy – Though the 
operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the Company explores alternative 
sources of energy, as and when the necessity arises. 
 

iii. The capital investment on energy conservation equipments – Nil. 
 
 

B. Technology absorption 
 

i. The efforts made towards technology absorption – The Company extensively uses the 
information technology in its operations and has absorbed the technology required in this 
regard. 

 
ii. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or 

import substitution – The Company has leveraged the technology to optimise cost 
reduction and product development.  

 
iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial year): 
 

(a) the details of technology imported: Not Applicable 
 

(b) the year of import: Not Applicable 
 

(c) whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not Applicable 
 

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons 
thereof: Not Applicable 

 
iv. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development – Not Applicable. 

 
 

C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
 

During the year under review, there was no foreign exchange inflow (previous year: Nil) and 
no foreign exchange outgo (previous year: Nil). 

 



 

 

 
OTHER DISCLOSURES 

 
i) There are no significant material changes and commitments affecting the financial 

position of the Company that occurred between the end of financial year and the 
date of this Report. 

 
ii) There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

 
iii) There was no revision in the financial statements of the Company. 

 
iv) There was no application made or proceeding pending against the Company under 

the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. There was no instance of one-time 
settlement with any Bank/Financial Institution in respect of loan taken by the 
Company. 

 
v) No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or 

Tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in 
future. 

 
vi) No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee and the Board. 

 
vii) Disclosure pertaining to maintenance of cost records as specified under the Act is 

not applicable to the Company. 
 

viii) The Company has not issued equity shares with differential voting rights as to 
dividend, voting or otherwise. 

 
ix) The Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act. 

 
x) The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 

xi) The Company doesn’t have any scheme involving provision of money for the 
purchase of the Company’s own shares by employees or by trusts. 
 

 
ANNUAL RETURN 

 
Pursuant to Sections 92 and 134 of the Act, the Annual Return as at March 31, 2025 in  
Form MGT-7, is available on the website of the Company at: 
www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. 

 
 



 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance and 
adheres to the Corporate Governance requirements set out by SEBI and the RBI. The Company 
has implemented several best governance practices.  
 
Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, the Report on Corporate Governance together with the 
certificate issued by M/s. Sahani & Kothari Associates, Company Secretaries, on compliance 
with the conditions of Corporate Governance during the financial year ended March 31, 2025 is 
provided in Annexure V and forms part of this Report. 
 
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 
Pursuant to Section 134 of the Act, the Directors confirm that: 

 
i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have 

been followed; 
 

ii) such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and the loss of the 
Company for the financial year ended on that date; 

 
iii) proper and sufficient care had been taken for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

 
iv) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

 
v) internal financial controls have been laid down and the same are adequate and were 

operating effectively; and 
 

vi) proper systems had been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
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Annexure - I 
 

Edel Finance Company Limited 
 

Form AOC-2 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto: 
 
I. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:  

(₹ in million) 

Sr. 
No. 
  
  
  
  

Name(s) of the 
related party and 
nature of 
relationship 
  
  
  
  

Nature of 
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 
  
  

Duration of 
the contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 
  
  

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 
including 
the value, if any 
  

Justification for 
entering into 
such contracts 
or arrangements 
or transactions 
  

Date of 
approval 
by the 
Board 
  
  

Amount 
paid as 
advances, if 
any 
  
  

Date on which the 
special resolution was 
passed in general 
meeting as required 
under first proviso to 
section 188 

Not Applicable 

 

  



 

 

II. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

(Rs. in million) 

Sr. 
No. 

Name(s) of the related party and nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/arrangements/transactions 

Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/ 
transactions 

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

Date of 
approval 
by the 
Board 

Amount paid 
as advances, 
if any 

1 
ECap Securities and Investments Limited  
(Fellow subsidiary) 

Purchase of Securities   - 
   
 

3,328.30  09-02-2024 
- 

2 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services 
Limited 
(Subsidiary) 

Purchase of Securities  - 
   
 

1,228.78  09-02-2024 
- 

3 
ECap Securities and Investments Limited  
(Fellow subsidiary) 

Purchase of Securities  - 
   

2,630.06  09-02-2024 
- 

4 
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
(Fellow subsidiary) 

Sale of Securities  - 
   

2,406.92  09-02-2024 
- 

5 
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 
(Holding Company) 

Interest paid  - 
   

2,571.58  09-02-2024 
- 

6 
ECap Equities Limited  
(Fellow subsidiary)  

Interest paid    - 
   

   569.62  09-02-2024 
- 

7 

Allium Corporate Services Private Limited 
(formerly known as Allium Finance Private 
Limited)  
(Subsidiary)  

Dividend received  - 

   
 
 

600.42  09-02-2024 

- 

 
  



 

 

For Edel Finance Company Limited 
 
 
 

 
Vidya Shah   Ananya Suneja 
Executive Director              Executive Director & CFO 
DIN: 00274831               DIN: 07297081 

Mumbai, May 9, 2025 
 



 

 
 

Annexure II 
 

Remuneration Policy 
 
Objective  
 
The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) requires a Company to frame policy for 
determining the remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMPs) and other employees.  
 
The objective of the Remuneration Policy (the Policy) of the Company is to provide 
a framework for the remuneration of the Independent Directors, Non-executive 
Directors, Managing Director/Executive Directors, KMPs, and other Senior level 
employees of the Company.  
 
The objective of this Policy is to ensure that: 
 

i. the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to 
attract, retain talent required to run the company successfully; 
 

ii. relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate 
performance benchmarks; and 
 

iii. remuneration to the Directors, KMPs and senior management comprises a 
balance of fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term 
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its 
goals. 
 

Remuneration of the Independent Directors & Non- executive Directors 
 

 The Independent Directors & Non-executive Directors are eligible for sitting 
fees for attending the meetings of the Board and the Committees thereof.  
 

 The Independent Directors & Non-executive Directors are also eligible for 
commission, subject to limits prescribed under the Act and the Rules framed 
there under.  
 

 The Independent Directors are not eligible for stock options.  
 

 The Non-executive Directors (other than promoter Directors) shall be 
eligible for stock options.  
 

Remuneration of the Managing Director & Executive Directors 
 

 The remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive Directors is 
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) to 
the Board. Based on the recommendations of the NRC, the Board determines 
and approves the remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive 
Directors, subject to necessary approvals, if any.  
 



 

 
 

 The remuneration paid to the Managing Director/Executive Directors is 
within the limits prescribed under the Act and approved by the shareholders 
of the Company. The remuneration structure includes fixed salary, 
perquisites, bonus, other benefits and allowances and contribution to Funds, 
etc.  
 

 The Executive Directors (other than the promoter Directors) shall be eligible 
for stock options.  
 

Remuneration of the KMP (other than Executive Directors) and Senior level 
employees  
 

 The key components of remuneration package of the KMP (other than 
Executive Directors) and Senior level employees shall comprise of fixed 
salary, perquisites, annual bonus, other benefits and allowances and 
contribution to Funds, etc. 
 

 They shall be eligible for stock options. 
 
 

Policy Review 
 

 The Policy may be amended as may be necessary. 
 

 The NRC shall implement the Policy, and may issue such guidelines, 
procedures etc. as it may deem fit. 
 
 

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 

Edel Finance Company Limited 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Mumbai, May 9, 2025 

Vidya Shah                                                 Ananya Suneja 
Executive Director                  Executive Director & CFO  
DIN: 00274831                                               DIN: 07297081 

  
 

 



 

 
 

Annexure III 
 

Edel Finance Company Limited 
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities 

for the financial year March 31, 2025 
 

As prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 

  
 
 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. 

To leverage the capacity and capital to equip and enable the social sector to achieve the greatest impact 
on the lives of the poor in India. 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:  

Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation / Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

held during the year 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 

Committee 
attended during the 

year 

1 Ms. Vidya Shah Executive Director 1 1 

2 Mr. Atul Ambavat Independent Director 1 1 

4 Ms. Ananya Suneja 

 

Executive Director & 
Chief Financial Officer  

1 1 

 
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects 

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company: 
 
The composition of CSR Committee and the CSR Policy are available on the website of the Company 
at www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. 
 

4. Provide the executive summary along with the weblink of Impact assessment of CSR projects 
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: 
 
Not Applicable 
 
 

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):  Not Applicable  
 
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):  NIL 

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years:  

NIL  

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (5a+5b-5c):  NIL 

 
6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing and other than Ongoing Project): Not Applicable  

 
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL 
 



 

 
 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not applicable 
 
(d) Total amount spent for the financial year (a)+(b)+(c): NIL 
 
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

 
Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial Year 
(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent  

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

section 135(5) 
 

Amount Date of transfer Name of the 
Fund 

Amount Date of 
transfer 

Not Applicable  

  

(f)  Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL 

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 
per section 135(5) 

 
 
 

Not Applicable  
(ii) Total amount spent for the financial year 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes 
or activities of the previous financial years, if any 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 
years [(iii)-(iv)] 

  
7.  Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three financial years: 

Sl. 
No. 

Preceding 
Financial 

Year 

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account 
under section 

135 (6) (in 
Rs.) 

Amount spent in the 
Financial Year (in 

Rs.) 

Amount transferred 
to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII 
as per section 135(6), 

if any. 

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

financial 
years (in Rs.) 

Deficiency, if 
any 

Amount 
(in Rs) 

Date of 
transfer 

1 FY 2023-24  
Not Applicable 

 
                                                 

2 FY 2022-23 

3 FY 2021-22 

 Total 

  
8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: Not Applicable 

  



 

 
 

 
 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5): Not Applicable    
 

        For and on behalf of the Board of  
        Edel Finance Company Limited  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Mumbai, May 9, 2025 

 

Vidya Shah   
Executive Director 
DIN: 00274831 

Ananya Suneja 
Executive Director & CFO 
DIN: 07297081   
 
 

 
 



Annexure IV











EDEL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED (EFCL)  
 
Management Discussion & Analysis  

MACRO ECONOMIC REVIEW & OUTLOOK 

The year 2024 was marked by significant global events, including unprecedented electoral activity, with 
over half the world's population participating in major elections. These transitions led to substantial 
shifts in domestic and international policies, triggering geopolitical volatility, particularly with the 
return of the Trump administration and a move towards protectionist trade measures. The imposition 
of reciprocal tariffs by the U.S. heightened global trade tensions and disrupted supply chains, 
increasing market volatility. Although inflationary pressures moderated globally, advanced economies 
continued to struggle with elevated prices. Central banks maintained a cautious monetary stance, 
balancing inflation control with growth support, and the IMF projects global growth at 3.3% in 2025. 

Despite the challenging global landscape, India displayed remarkable resilience, benefiting from 
strategic policy interventions and structural reforms. Although the first quarter of 2024 saw a 
slowdown due to election-related capital expenditure delays, GDP growth rebounded in Q3 FY25 to 
6.2%. Services exports, fiscal discipline, and stable remittance inflows have supported macroeconomic 
stability, with agencies projecting a growth of 6.4% in FY25. India’s robust digital economy and 
infrastructure development continue to foster growth amid external uncertainties. 

Looking ahead, global economic uncertainties, driven by trade fragmentation and geopolitical tensions, 
pose risks. However, India remains relatively insulated due to its low exposure to global trade 
disruptions. The country is poised to benefit from strengthened trade relationships, a growing South-
South trade network, and improving domestic factors, such as consumer confidence and rural demand. 
Projections for FY26 indicate GDP growth between 6.3% and 6.8%, with government initiatives 
supporting manufacturing, infrastructure, and exports. 

India's economy, now valued at $4.3 trillion, is set to become the third-largest globally by 2027. To 
sustain this growth, India must manage global risks, ensure macroeconomic stability, and deepen 
structural reforms. With strong demographics, a growing private sector, and a focus on enhancing 
competitiveness, India is well-positioned for continued growth. Achieving the vision of a developed 
India by 2047 requires consistent 8%+ annual growth, driven by deregulation, innovation, and inclusive 
development. 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS  
The NBFC sector remains a critical enabler of credit flow in India, especially to underpenetrated 
segments like MSMEs, affordable housing, and retail borrowers. Structurally diverse, the industry 
includes Asset Finance Companies, Loan Companies, Investment and Infrastructure Finance 
Companies, and Housing Finance Companies. Regulatory tightening by the RBI in FY25—particularly 
around unsecured lending—has led to a more cautious operating environment, focusing on asset 
quality and risk discipline. 

Key Highlights – FY25: 

• Loan growth moderated to 13–17%, down from 21% in FY24, amid regulatory headwinds and 
prudent risk assessment. 

• AUM growth eased to 13–15%, reflecting selective asset origination. 
• Profitability faced pressure due to higher funding and credit costs. 



• Home loans saw stable growth (13–14% CAGR), while LAP grew robustly (23–24% CAGR), 
driven by MSME demand. 

• Unsecured lending slowed to 15–16%, reflecting regulatory impact. 
• Industry stakeholders proposed a refinance/liquidity facility to enhance credit flow to priority 

sectors. 

The growth trajectory for NBFCs is expected to stabilize in FY26. After a moderation in FY25, loan 
growth is anticipated to stabilize at healthy levels. Economic activity is projected to improve, 
supporting this stabilization. However, challenges persist, particularly in accessing affordable funding. 
The Finance Industry Development Council (FIDC) has urged the government to establish a refinance 
or liquidity facility to enhance lending to priority sectors, including agriculture and small enterprises, 
to address these funding gaps.  

EDEL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED OVERVIEW 
Edel Finance Company Limited (EFCL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services 
Limited. It is a non-banking financial institution (Core Investment Company) registered with the 
Reserve Bank of India.  

The Company was granted the registration as Core Investment Company (NBFC-CIC-ND-SI) on 
October 9, 2018 subject to the conditions given in the certificate of registration by the Reserve Bank of 
India. EFCL is primarily engaged is engaged in investing in group companies and providing loans to 
them. 

  

EFCL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FOR FY25 

A summary of our FY25 financial highlights together with financials for FY24 as per Ind AS 
is as under: 
 
Total Revenue: Rs. 6867.0 million (Rs. 4046.9 million for FY24), 
Total Expenses: Rs. 6822.2 million (Rs. 3904.3 million in FY24) 
Profit / Loss after Tax: Rs. (32.4) million ( Rs. 791.5 million for FY24) 
Networth: Rs. 25,996.4 million (Rs. 26,028.9 million at the end of FY24) 
 

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS 
EFCL performs the functions of a Core Investment Company (CIC) and broadly offers 
investment and lending activities for the Edelweiss group companies. It has ceased to extend 
credit after its conversion to CIC. 

Balance Sheet Gearing 
EFCL has a total net worth of Rs. 25,996.4 million as at the end of FY25 compared to Rs. 26,028.9 
million as at the end of FY24. Amount of debt on the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2024 was 
Rs. 51,429.2 million (Rs. 48,268.5 million as on March 31, 2024).  



The gross Balance Sheet size at the end of FY25 was Rs.78,497.7 million compared to  
Rs. 74,409.94 million at the end of FY24. 

Capital Adequacy Ratio 
As per the Non-Banking Financial Companies Prudential Norms stipulated by Reserve Bank, 
all NBFCs–ND–SI are required to maintain a minimum Capital to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio 
(“CRAR”) of 30%. EFCL’s CRAR as on March 31, 2025 was 31.64% as compared to total CRAR 
of 32.09% as on March 31, 2024. 

ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN FINANCIAL 
RATIOS 

 
As per the recent amendments to the SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements 
(LODR), we give below additional information in respect of financial parameters that are 
applicable to our company: 

 
Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately 
previous financial year) in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations therefor, 
including: 

(a) Debt Equity Ratio was 1.98 times at the end of FY25 compared to 1.85 times at the end of 
FY24. 
(b) Profit before Tax Margin was 0.7% at end of FY25 as compared to 3.5% at the end of 
FY24. 
(c)  Net Profit Margin was (0.5)% at the end of FY25 compared to 19.6% at the end of FY24. 
(d)  Return on Average Equity for FY25 is (0.12)% compared to 4.22% for FY24. 
 

Other parameters, namely Debtors Turnover, Inventory Turnover, Interest Coverage Ratio 
and Current Ratio, are not applicable to our company. 

EDELWEISS OUTLOOK & STRATEGY 
OUTLOOK  

The financial services sector in India is poised for steady growth in 2025, driven by a combination of 
favourable macroeconomic conditions, digital adoption, and evolving consumer needs. The 
government’s push for financial inclusion, coupled with an increasingly digital-first economy, presents 
a promising outlook for the industry. At Edelweiss, we are embracing the evolving landscape and 
actively positioning ourselves to capture new opportunities that will contribute to the growth of India's 
financial ecosystem. 

Our diverse operations and a well-rounded business portfolio provide a natural safeguard, ensuring 
consistent earnings and performance while opening up valuable cross-selling avenues. In the coming 
year, our strategic focus will remain on enhancing profitability, optimizing operations, and harnessing 
emerging technologies to innovate and navigate market fluctuations. By leveraging our expertise and 
forward-looking approach, we are prepared to capitalize on emerging trends.  



OPPORTUNITIES  
India's financial services sector in 2025 is undergoing a significant transformation, driven by the 
convergence of rapid technological advancements and evolving demographic shifts. This synergy is 
unlocking unprecedented opportunities for innovation and growth, reshaping service delivery and 
consumption. 

Regulatory reforms and the continued development of digital infrastructure are expected to drive more 
efficient financial operations, enabling mid-tier players to gain a competitive edge. Furthermore, the 
expansion of the middle class and a rise in disposable incomes will continue to fuel demand for 
financial products and services, especially in areas like retail banking, asset management, and 
insurance. 

Key trends shaping the outlook include: 

 Digital Transformation: The adoption of technology is accelerating, with AI, data analytics, and 
fintech innovations reshaping financial services. 

 Financial Inclusion: Initiatives aimed at bringing underserved populations into the financial 
fold are creating new customer bases for financial products. 

 Sustainability & ESG (Environmental, Social, and Governance): With growing awareness of 
sustainability, financial services firms are increasingly focusing on green finance and 
responsible investing. 

 

AI and ML are enabling personalized financial advisory, automated risk assessments, and advanced 
fraud detection, catering to the growing affluent class. Blockchain is revolutionizing transactions, 
facilitating faster cross-border payments and DeFi platforms, particularly appealing to the digitally 
savvy youth. Cloud computing enhances scalability and agility, allowing for rapid service deployment. 

In essence, technology is enabling institutions to cater to India's evolving demographics, from the 
affluent to the underserved, by offering personalized, efficient, and secure financial solutions. 

THREATS  
The financial services sector faces a complex array of interconnected threats, requiring a proactive and 
adaptive approach. 

Cybersecurity Threats 
Financial services face heightened cybersecurity risks, driven by sophisticated AI-powered attacks, 
persistent ransomware, and state-sponsored cyber activities targeting critical infrastructure. The 
increasing dependence on third-party vendors introduces additional vulnerabilities, making it crucial 
for financial institutions to implement stringent security protocols, conduct thorough risk 
assessments, and ensure effective vendor management. 

Technological Risks 
As financial institutions rapidly adopt emerging technologies like AI, machine learning, and cloud 
computing, new risks arise, such as algorithmic bias, data breaches, and amplified cybersecurity 
threats. These innovations demand comprehensive security measures, continuous regulatory 
compliance, and strong employee training to mitigate risks while maximizing technological benefits. 

Economic Volatility 
Economic uncertainty, marked by fluctuating interest rates, inflation, and geopolitical tensions, poses 
significant challenges. Global trade disruptions and unstable investment flows further complicate 
financial planning. Institutions must proactively manage risks through strategies like stress testing, 
scenario analysis, and dynamic forecasting to remain resilient during economic fluctuations. 



Geopolitical Tensions 
Geopolitical conflicts and trade disputes contribute to market volatility, affecting asset prices, 
investments, and international operations. The heightened risk of loan defaults and the need for 
complex sanctions compliance require financial institutions to focus on maintaining regulatory 
adherence and implementing crisis management strategies to navigate these turbulent times. 

To successfully navigate these interconnected risks, financial institutions must focus on enhancing 
cybersecurity, strengthening vendor oversight, and ensuring proactive regulatory compliance. 
Investing in employee training, diversifying revenue streams, and continuously monitoring economic 
and geopolitical trends will help institutions remain adaptable.  

 

ENTERPRISE GROUPS  

GOVERNANCE 
Across all our businesses, our core commitment to governance guides everything we do. This goes 
beyond just following regulations; it's about upholding ethics and values. For us, good governance 
embodies trust, legitimacy, accountability, competence, and respect for the law. We believe these are 
essential for building a transparent, genuine, and fair culture – all crucial for our organization's success. 
 
Our board plays a vital role in ensuring these high governance standards permeate every 
organizational level. Their unwavering focus on ethical behaviour, integrity, transparency, and fairness 
has established a robust framework for conduct, behaviour, and process oversight. 
 
To ensure good governance takes root throughout the organization, we have established clear rules for 
individual and entity-level behaviour and conduct. These cover crucial areas like conflict of interest, 
insider trading, and handling sensitive information. We're also leveraging technology to enhance our 
practices and ensure smooth operation, even in a work-from-home environment, allowing us to 
maintain the highest compliance standards. 
 
Ultimately, our commitment to good governance reflects our unwavering dedication to our 
stakeholders – customers, employees, shareholders, and the communities we serve. By upholding these 
values, we build trust, maintain legitimacy, and hold ourselves accountable to the highest standards of 
excellence in all aspects of our work. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 
At Edelweiss, in each of our businesses, the commitment to robust risk management practices is deeply 
ingrained in their organizational culture and business operations. To further formalise this process, 
they operate via a “Eleven-risk framework” that guides them  in the continuous assessment, voidance, 
management, and mitigation of risks. 

 



 
     Fig: Eleven-risk framework 

One of the key areas of focus within our risk management framework is technology risk, particularly 
cybersecurity. As financial services firms increasingly rely on technology to deliver products and 
services, they become more vulnerable to cyber threats and vulnerabilities. A cyber-attack or data 
breach can not only disrupt operations but also expose sensitive information and erode customer trust. 
Therefore, we have made significant investments in fortifying our IT infrastructure, implementing 
robust cybersecurity measures, and enhancing our cyber resilience capabilities to mitigate the evolving 
cyber threats landscape. 

Moreover, the recent enactment of the Digital Personal Data Protection Act, 2023 by the government 
has introduced new compliance obligations for financial services firms like ours. Compliance with 
DPDPA 2023 represents a significant risk project for Edelweiss, as it mandates stringent measures to 
protect consumer data privacy and confidentiality. Failure to comply with these regulations could 
result in severe penalties, legal liabilities, and reputational damage. Therefore, ensuring adherence to 
DPDPA 2023 requirements is not just a legal obligation but a strategic imperative to safeguard our 
reputation and maintain the trust of our stakeholders. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR 
ADEQUACY 

Internal Financial Controls 
The internal controls at Edelweiss are well established and robust which are commensurate with the 
nature of its businesses, size & scale and complexity of its operations to ensure orderly and efficient 
conduct of business. These controls have been designed to ensure assurance with regards to 
maintaining proper accounting controls, substantiation of financial statements and adherence to Ind 
AS requirements, safeguarding of resources, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, ensuring 
operating effectiveness, reliability of financial reporting, compliance with applicable regulations and 
relevant matters under the requirements of the Companies Act 2013.  

The internal control framework of Edelweiss continues to follow the assurance practices like the COSO 
framework, assurance on process efficiency and reliability of internal controls being aligned to risks 
identified in Risk Control Self-Assessment (RCSA), etc. to strengthen the overall system.    

Independent Audit and Assurance  
The internal auditors of Edelweiss follow standards on internal audit, along with guidelines issued by 
the regulators and ensure compliance with section 138 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 13 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended and notified from time to time. The Internal Audit 
function operates under the supervision of the Audit Committee of the Board.   

The internal audits are carried out by external professionals who provide independent view and 
assurance by assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, compliance to internal and 
external guidelines, and risk management practices across the Group.   
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TECHNOLOGY 
In today’s competitive financial services landscape, technology is key to differentiation and success. 
The global pandemic highlighted the need for resilient, adaptable tech infrastructure. Going forward, 
technology must be seen as a core pillar of the business model, driving transformative impacts by 
enhancing customer experience and strengthening governance, creating a more agile and future-proof 
organization. 
 
Key Pillars of Technology Resiliency: 
Edelweiss has strengthened its technology resilience through two key pillars. First, cloud optimization 
expanded cloud adoption, leveraging multiple providers for flexibility and cost control, while 
launching new applications to drive growth across business segments. Second, automation and 
modernization were prioritized, with Edelweiss utilizing low-code tools to automate processes and 
enhance agility, a core element of its technology strategy. 
 
AI Adoption for Enhanced Productivity: 
We've successfully integrated Gen AI into our operations, specifically leveraging Co-pilot, an AI-
powered tool, to streamline workflows and improve user productivity. 

Information Security & IT Governance: 
• ISO Certification Upgrade: In our pursuit of excellence, we've upgraded our ISO certificate 

from 27001:2013 to 27001:2022, reflecting our commitment to implementing the best practices 
in information security management. 

• Increased Information Security Awareness: Our commitment to security extends to our entire 
workforce, achieving a 90% adoption rate on Information Security trainings, demonstrating 
their dedication to maintaining a secure and reliable digital environment. 

• Data Leak Protection Solutions: We've deployed Data Leak Protection solutions to prevent 
unauthorized access to sensitive data and mitigate the risk of data breaches. This step 
strengthens our security posture and ensures compliance with data protection regulations, 
safeguarding the privacy of our customers and employees. 

By prioritizing a robust and adaptable technology backbone, Edelweiss Group fosters business 
continuity, drives growth, and ensures the security of its clients' data. Our commitment to continuous 
improvement and innovation in these areas ensures we provide the best service to our customers and 
partners. 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
Our employees are our most valuable assets, essential for sustaining and advancing our commitment 
to stakeholders. Guided by core principles, we foster a culture of shared values, propelling us towards 
continued success. 

Talent 
We believe in attracting, developing, and retaining top talent through a holistic approach. Our agile 
and collaborative environment nurtures professional growth while celebrating achievements through 
meaningful recognition programs. With optimized work design, flexible processes, and tailored 
reskilling initiatives, we equip our teams for future success. A strong sense of community is fostered 
through interactive engagements, team-building activities, and social events, reinforcing a culture of 
belonging. Our performance management framework ensures clarity, continuous feedback, and 
professional development, aligning individual aspirations with organizational goals.  
 
Workplace 



Our workplace is built on collaboration, flexibility, and inclusivity. We support cross-team interactions 
and offer flexible work arrangements to enhance productivity and work-life balance. Employee well-
being remains a top priority, with stringent safety protocols and regular health and wellness training. 
Transparency and fairness are at the heart of our culture, upheld through an open-door policy and a 
zero-tolerance stance on discrimination, harassment, or bullying. We adhere to POSH regulations and 
mandate comprehensive training to reinforce these principles. Our commitment to diversity, equity, 
and inclusion (DEI) ensures that every individual is respected and valued, creating a workplace where 
everyone can succeed. 

Well-Being 
A thriving workforce is built on holistic well-being—covering physical, mental, emotional, and social 
dimensions. Our employees benefit from competitive leave policies, enhanced Mediclaim coverage, 
and accessible wellness resources. In times of crisis, our 24/7 Central Incident Room provides 
immediate support and ongoing assistance. Our outreach programs promote resilience, ensuring that 
every employee has the tools and support they need to flourish both personally and professionally. 

Leadership 
Leadership in a hybrid world demands adaptability and innovation. Our leaders harness 
technology to ensure seamless communication, keeping teams aligned with strategic goals. 
We are dedicated to continuous learning, offering tiered development programs that 
empower employees at every career stage—currently benefiting 3% of our workforce. With 
5,769 employees, including 26% women, we are committed to fostering an inclusive, forward-
thinking organization where talent and leadership pave the way for a stronger future. 

Cautionary Statement Statements made in this Annual Report may contain certain words or phrases that are forward-looking 
statements, which are tentative, based on current expectations of the management of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited or 
any of its subsidiaries and associates (“Edelweiss”). Actual results may vary from such statements contained in this report 
due to various risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include the effect of economic and political conditions in 
India and outside India, volatility in interest rates and in the securities market, new regulations and Government policies that 
may impact the businesses of Edelweiss as well as the ability to implement its strategy. The information contained herein is as 
of the date referenced and Edelweiss does not undertake any obligation to update these statements. Edelweiss has obtained all 
market or industry data and other information from sources believed to be reliable or through its internal estimates unless 
otherwise stated, although its accuracy or completeness cannot be guaranteed. Some part of the report relating to business-
wise financial performance, balance sheet, asset books of Edelweiss and industry data herein is reclassified/regrouped based on 
Management estimates and may not directly correspond to published data. The numbers have also been rounded off or 
approximated in the interest of easier understanding. Prior period or other figures have been regrouped/reclassified/re-casted 
wherever necessary. All information in this presentation has been prepared solely by the company and has not been 
independently verified by anyone else. 



 

 

Annexure V 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 
Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance 

 
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited and part of 
Edelweiss Group. At Edelweiss, we strongly uphold good governance practices to promote 
fairness, transparency, accountability and integrity. In line with this philosophy, Guiding 
Principles have been articulated and these form an integral part of the Company’s corporate 
governance practices. Processes have been designed to run the businesses responsibly and 
harmonize diversified interests of various stakeholders thereby enhancing stakeholders value. 
 

Board of Directors 
 
Composition, Meeting and Attendance 

 
The Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company comprises of Executive and Non-executive 
and the composition is in conformity with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) and the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act).  
 
The annual calendar of the Board Meetings is agreed upon at the beginning of the year. The 
agenda for the Board Meetings is circulated in advance and is backed by comprehensive 
background information to enable the Board to take informed decisions. During the financial 
year ended March 31, 2025, the Board met 4 times i.e. on: May 10, 2024, August 1, 2024,  
October 28, 2024 and February 6, 2025. The Meetings of the Board and Committees were 
conducted physically and also through electronic platform - Audio-videoconferencing. 
Adequate facilities were provided to the Directors and invitees for active participation at the 
Meetings.   

 
The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at the Board Meetings 
held during the financial year 2024-25 and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM), the 
number of directorships and committee positions held by them in other public limited 
companies and the name of the other listed entities where he/she is a Director and category of 
directorships as on March 31, 2025, are as under: 

Name and DIN of the 
Directors 

Category No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
Attended 

Attendance 
at the 

last AGM 
held on 

September 
30, 2024 

No. of 
directorships 

in  
Public 

Limited 
Companies$ 

Name of other 
Listed entities 
where person 
is Director - 
Category of 
Directorship 

Committee 
Position* 

      Member Chairman 
Ms. Vidya Shah 
(DIN 00274831) 

Executive,  
Non-Independent 

4 No 3 Independent 
Director - 
Vardhman 
Special Steels 
Limited 

2 1 

Dr. Vinod Juneja 
(DIN: 00044311) 

Independent 4 No 4 -    
 
 

5 2 



 

 

 
Name and DIN of the 
Directors 

Category No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
Attended 

Attendance 
at the last 

AGM held 
on 

September 
30, 2024 

No. of 
directorships 

in Public 
Limited 

Companies$ 

Name of other 
Listed entities 

where person is 
Director - 

Category of 
Directorship 

Committee 
Position* 

      Member Chairman 
Mr. Atul Ambavat 
(DIN: 00195875) 

Independent 2 Yes - - 2 1 

Mr. Sunil 
Phatarphekar 

(DIN: 00005164) 

Independent 4 No 3 - 8 2 

Ms. Ananya Suneja 
(DIN: 07297081) 

Executive, Non-
Independent 

4 Yes 6 -  1 - 

Ms. Priyadeep Chopra 
(DIN: 00079353) 

Non- Executive, 
Non-Independent 4 No 3 -  1 1 

 
$ Only Directorships of public limited companies incorporated in India have been considered and excludes private 
limited companies, section 8 companies and foreign companies. 

 
*Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, in other public limited companies, have been 
considered for the Committee position. 
 
None of the Directors hold office in more than 10 public companies as prescribed under the Act. 
No Director holds Directorships in more than 7 listed companies. Further, none of the Non-
executive Directors serve as Independent Director in more than 7 listed companies as required 
under the Listing Regulations. None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 
Committees and Chairperson of more than 5 Committees, across all public limited companies in 
which he/she is a Director. Independent Directors are Non-executive Directors as defined 
under the Listing Regulations and the Act along with Rules framed thereunder. In terms of 
Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have confirmed that they are not aware of any 
circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or 
impact their ability to discharge their duties.  
 
Ms. Vidya Shah is one of the promoters of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (EFSL), the 
Holding Company of the Company. Ms. Ananya Suneja is Key Managerial Personnel of EFSL 
and draws remuneration from EFSL. 
 
Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board has confirmed 
that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under the Listing Regulations and that 
they are independent of the Management. Further, the Independent Directors have, in terms of 
Section 150 of the Act read with the Rules framed thereunder, confirmed that they have enrolled 
themselves in the Independent Directors’ Databank maintained with the Indian Institute of 
Corporate Affairs. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors are persons of 
integrity and possess relevant expertise, experience and proficiency. 
 
All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified for appointment 
as Directors pursuant to Section 164 of the Act. 
 
M/s. Sahani & Kothari Associates, Company Secretaries, have issued a certificate certifying that 
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities & Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI), the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and any such statutory authority. 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Board skills/expertise/competence matrix 

 
The Board have identified the following parameters with respect to the skill/expertise/ 
competence that are available with the Board in the context of the business and sector for it to 
function effectively: 

 
Directors Industry 

Knowledge / 
Experience  

Technical Skills/ 
Experience 

 

Behavioural 
Competencies 
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Ms. Vidya Shah *  *  * *  *  * * *  * * * 
Dr. Vinod Juneja *  *  * *  * * - -  * * * 
Mr. Atul Ambavat *  *  * *  * * * *  * * * 
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar *  *  * *  * * * *  * * * 
Ms. Ananya Suneja *  *  * *  * * * *  * * * 
Ms. Priyadeep Chopra *  *  * *  * * * *  * * * 

 

Committees of the Board: 
 

A) Audit Committee 
 

Meetings held: 
 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Committee met 4 times on May 10, 
2024, August 1, 2024, October 28, 2024 and February 6, 2025. 

 
The Committee comprises of the Independent Directors only. The composition as on 
March 31, 2025 and attendance of the Members at the Committee Meetings during the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025 was as under:- 
 

Name of the Members 
 

No. of Meetings 
Attended 

Dr. Vinod Juneja – Chairman 4 
Mr. Atul Ambavat 2 
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar 4 

 
 



 

 

All the Members of the Committee have financial management expertise. The constitution and 
terms of reference of the Committee are in compliance with the requirements of the Act and the 
Listing Regulations. 
 
Brief description of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee inter alia includes: 
 

1) Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible 

 
2) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the 

Company  
 

3) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 
auditors  

 
4) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon 

before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:  
 

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be 
included in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-Section 3 of Section 134 
of the Companies Act, 2013   
 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same  
 

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 
management  
 

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 
findings  
 

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 
statements  
 

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions  
 

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report. 
 

5) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the 
board for approval 

 
6) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems 

 
7) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of 

the internal control systems 
 

8) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon 
 

9) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of 
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern  

 
10) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower/Vigil Mechanism 

 
11) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit 

Committee. 
 

 



 

 

The Auditors, Internal Auditors and the Chief Financial Officer are invited to attend the Meetings 
of the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 
 

B) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 

Meetings held: 
 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Committee met on May 10, 2024.  
 

The composition as on March 31, 2025 and attendance of the Members at the Committee 
Meetings during the financial year ended March 31, 2025 was as under:- 

 
Name of the Members No. of Meetings 

 Attended 
Dr. Vinod Juneja – Chairman 1 
Mr. Atul Ambavat 1 
Ms. Priyadeep Chopra 1 

 
 
Brief description of the terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
inter alia includes: 

 
1) identify the persons who can become directors 

 
2) to ensure ‘fit and proper’ status and credentials of proposed/existing directors 

 
3) formulate the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes etc. and 

independence of a director 
 

4) recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the directors, key 
managerial personnel, for the approval of the Board.  

 
The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy which is annexed to the Board’s 
Report. 

 
Board Evaluation 

 
During the year, in accordance with the Board Evaluation Policy and the Guidance Note 
on Board Evaluation issued by SEBI, an annual evaluation of its own performance and 
that of the Committees and Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing 
Regulations was carried out by the Board on various parameters which inter alia included 
composition, diversity, effectiveness, quality of discussion, contribution at the Meetings, 
business acumen, strategic thinking, time commitment, relationship with the stakeholders, 
corporate governance practices, contribution of the Committees etc. 
 
A separate Meeting of the Independent Directors was held wherein the performance of 
the Non-Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole (including the 
Committees) in terms of the provisions of the Act, the Listing Regulations and the 
Guidance Note issued by SEBI in this regard, was discussed. 
 
Familiarization Programme 

 
The Independent Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights, responsibilities etc. in 
relation to the nature of the financial services sector and the business model of the 



 

 

Company. The details are available on the website of the Company at: 
www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. 
 
Remuneration to the Directors 

 
The Company pays  sitting fees of Rs.50,000 per Meeting to the Independent Directors for 
attending the Meetings of the Board and the Committees thereof.  
 
The details of the remuneration paid to the Directors during the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025, are as under: 

    (Rs. in million) 
Name of the Director Remuneration Perquisites Sitting Fees Commission Total 

 
(including 
bonus)     

      
      
Ms. Vidya Shah 43.00 0.04 43.04
Dr. Vinod Juneja - - 0.70 - 0.70
Mr. Atul Ambavat - - 0.50 - 0.50
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar - - 0.50 - 0.50
Ms. Ananya Suneja - - - - -
Ms. Priyadeep Chopra - - - - -

 
As of March 31, 2025, none of the Directors hold any shares in the Company. 
 
Service contract of the Executive Directors is as approved by the Members and the notice 
period is as per the Rules of the Company. Severance fees – Not applicable.  
 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, some of the Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMPs) of the Company were also the KMPs of the holding Company & subsidiaries and 
drew remuneration from them. 
 

 
C) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

 
The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2025 and attendance of the Members 
at the Committee Meeting held during the financial year ended March 31, 2025, was as 
under:- 
 

Name of the Member 
 

No. of Meetings 
Attended 

Mr. Atul Ambavat  1 
Ms. Vidya Shah 1 
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar 1 

 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Committee met on August 1, 2024.  
 
Ms. Christina D’souza is the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company. 
 
Mr. Atul Ambavat, Chairman of the Committee was present at the last AGM of the 
Company held on September 30, 2024.  
 
Brief description of the terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
inter alia includes: 
 



 

 

1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including 
complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, 
non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general 
meetings etc.  
 

2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders 
 

3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect 
of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 
 

4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for 
reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of 
dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the 
Company.  

 
Ms. Christina D’souza is the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer. Ms. D’souza also 
acts as the Company Secretary for all the Committees constituted by the Board. 
 
Based on the reports received from the Registrar & Transfer Agents during the financial 
year ended March 31, 2025, the Company did not receive any requests/complaints during 
the financial year ended March 31, 2025. As on March 31, 2025, there were no outstanding 
requests/complaints. 
 

D) Group Risk Management Committee 
 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Committee met 4 times on May 10, 2024, 
August 1, 2024, October 28, 2024 and February 6, 2025. 
 
The composition as on March 31, 2025 and attendance of the Members at the Committee 
Meetings held during the financial year ended March 31, 2025, was as under:- 
  

Name of the Member 
 

No. of Meetings Attended 

Dr. Vinod Juneja - Independent Director 4 
Mr. Atul Ambavat - Independent Director 2 
Ms. Ananya Suneja – Executive Director and Chief 
Financial Officer 

4 

Ms. Priyadeep Chopra – Non-executive Director 3 
Ms. Christina D’souza – Company Secretary  4 
 
 
Brief description of the terms of reference of the Group Risk Management Committee inter alia 
include: 
 

1) Analyze the material risks to which the group, its businesses and subsidiaries are 
exposed. It must discuss all risk strategies both at an aggregated level and by type of risk 
and make recommendations to the Board in accordance with the group’s overall risk 
appetite 
 

2) Identify potential intra group conflicts of interest 
 

3) Assess whether there are effective systems in place to facilitate exchange of information 
for effective risk oversight of the group 
 



 

 

4) Assess whether the corporate governance framework addresses risk management across 
the group 

 

5) Carry out periodic independent formal review of the group structure and internal controls 
 

6) Articulate the leverage of the Group and monitor the same. 
 
 

The Group Risk Management Committee has framed and implemented a Risk Management Framework 
and Strategy. The Company did not have any exposure in commodity price and hedging activities 
during the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

 
 
E) Asset Liability Management Committee 

 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Committee met 4 times  on May 9, 2024, 
August 1, 2024, October 28, 2024 and February 6, 2025. 
 
The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2025 and attendance of the Members 
at the Committee Meeting held during the financial year ended March 31, 2025, was as 
under:- 
  

Name of the Members 
 

No. of Meetings Attended 

Dr. Vinod Juneja - Independent Director 4 
Ms. Ananya Suneja – Executive Director and Chief 
Financial Officer 

4 

Ms. Christina D’souza – Company Secretary  4 
 
 
Brief description of the terms of reference of the Asset Liability Management Committee inter alia 
includes: 
 

1) Monitoring the asset liability gap 
 

2) Strategizing action to mitigate risk associated with the asset liability gap 
 

3) Developing risk policies and procedures and verifying adherence to various risk 
parameters and prudential limits 
 

4) Reviewing the risk monitoring system 
 

5) Ensure that credit exposure to any one group does not exceed the internally set limits as 
well as statutory limit(s) by RBI. 
 

 
General Body Meetings 

 
The details regarding the date, time and number of Special Resolutions passed at the last three Annual 
General Meetings, are as under: 



 

 

 
Financial Date of the AGM Time Venue No. of 
Year    Special 

    Resolutions 
    Passed 
2023-2024 September 30, 2024 3.00 p.m. Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. 

Road, Kalina, Mumbai - 400 098. 
 

1 

2022-2023 
 
 
2021-2022 

September 30, 2023 
 
 
September 30, 2022 

4.00 p.m. 
 
 
5.00 p.m. 

Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. 
Road, Kalina, Mumbai - 400 098. 
 
Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. 
Road, Kalina, Mumbai - 400 098. 

1 
 
 

Nil  

     
 
There were no Resolutions passed through Postal Ballot during the financial year ended  
March 31, 2025. 
 
The Resolution, if any, to be passed through Postal Ballot during the current financial year  
will be taken up as and when necessary, in the manner provided in the Act and the Listing  
Regulations.  
 
Means of Communication 

 
The financial results are submitted to BSE Limited, where the Non-convertible Debentures are 
listed and also uploaded on the website of the Company at www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. 
The financial results are generally published in Free Press Journal (English) and Nav Shakti 
(Marathi). 

 
I. General Shareholder Information 

 
i. AGM: Date, time and 

venue/ mode 
Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 4:00  p.m. at the Registered 
Office of the Company at Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. 
Road, Kalina, Mumbai - 400 098 

   
ii. Financial Year: April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025 

iii. Book Closure dates:  Not Applicable 
   
iv. Dividend payment 

date: 
Not Applicable 
 

 
 

II. Listing of Securities on Stock Exchanges: 
 

The equity shares of the Company are not listed on the stock exchanges.  
 
 
Non-convertible Debentures and Commercial papers 
 
During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has raised funds by issue of 
Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) on private placement. Some of the NCDs are listed 
on BSE Limited (BSE).  
 
The Company has also raised funds by issue of Commercial papers.  



 

 

 
The Company has paid the listing fees for the financial year ending March 31, 2026 to BSE. 
 
 
 
Debenture Trustee:         
 
The details of the Debenture Trustees 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

III. Registrar & Transfer Agent: 
 

a. Equity Shares 
 

MUFG Intime India Private Limited  
(formerly known as Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.) 
C 101, Embassy, 247 Park,  
L.B.S Marg, 
Vikhroli (West),  
Mumbai - 400 083. 
Tel: +91 81081 16767 
Fax: +91 22 4918 6060  
Email: rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com 
Website: https://in.mpms.mufg.com  

 
b. Non-Convertible Debentures 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
IV. Share Transfer System: 
 

Transfer of equity shares in electronic form are effected through the depositories without 
any involvement of the Company.  

 
 
 

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited 
Mistry Bhavan, 4th Floor,   
122 Dinshaw Wachha Road, 
Churchgate, Mumbai – 400 020 
Tel: +91 22 - 43025555 
Email: 
corporate@sbicaptrustee.com 
Website: 
www.sbicaptrustee.com  

Beacon Trusteeship Limited 
5W, 5th Floor, Metropolitan Building 
E Block, Bandra Kurla Complex (BKC), 
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051. 
Tel: 022-4606 0278.  
Email: 
compliance@beacontrustee.co.in  
Website:  http://beacontrustee.co.in/  

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited 
Unit No. 901, 9th Floor,  
Tower  - B, Peninsula Business Park, 
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel West), 
Mumbai – 400 013.  
Tel.: +91 22 4922 0555 
Email: dt.mumbai@ctltrustee.com 
Website: www.catalysttrustee.com 

 MUFG Intime India Private Limited KFin Technologies Limited 
 C 101, Embassy, 247 Park, L.B.S Marg,  Selenium Tower B, Plot Nos. 31&32, 

 Vikhroli (West), 
Financial District, Nanakramguda, 
Serilingampally, 

 Mumbai - 400 083 Hyderabad - 500 032 
 Tel: +91 22 81081 16767 Tel: +91 40 6716 2222 
 Fax: +91 22 4918 6060 Fax: +91 40 6716 1563 

 
Email: 
bonds.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com 

 
Website:  https://in.mpms.mufg.com  
  Website: www.kfintech.com 



 

 

V.   Distribution of shareholding and shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2025 and   
Dematerialisation of shares 
 

 
      The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, 

which holds 9,56,67,388 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each representing 100% of the equity 
share capital of the Company.  Of the above, 9,56,67,382 Equity shares were held in 
dematerialised form.  

 
VI. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date 

and likely impact on equity: 
 

The Company has not issued GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any other instrument convertible into 
equity.  
 

VII. Plant locations – Not Applicable    
 

  
VIII. Credit ratings: The credit ratings obtained by the Company during the year 2024-25 are as 

under:- 
 
 

Rating Agency Rating  Instruments 
Date of revision  

(if any) Revised Rating  

ACUITE 
ACUITE A+ LT-NCD No revision - 

ACUITE A1+ Commercial Paper No revision                  - 

BWR 
BWR A1+ Commercial Paper 

June 7, 2024 
BWR A1 

BWR AA- LT-NCD BWR A+ 

CARE 

CARE PP-MLD A LT-PPMLD No revision - 

CARE A LT-NCD No revision - 

CARE A1 Commercial Paper Withdrawn w.e.f. October 8, 2024 - 

CRISIL 

CRISIL PPMLD A+ LT-PPMLD No revision - 

CRISIL A1+ Commercial Paper No revision - 

CRISIL A+ LT-NCD No revision - 

CRISIL PPMLD A1+ ST-PPMLD No revision - 

ICRA 
ICRA A+ LT-NCD No revision - 

ICRA PP-MLD A+ LT-PPMLD No revision - 

INFOMERICS IVR A1+ Commercial Paper No revision - 

 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
    



 

 

  

IX. Other Disclosures 
 

i. In accordance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Company has 
formulated the Related Party Transactions Policy, which is available on the website 
of the Company at www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com 
 
All the Related Party Transactions entered by the Company during the year ended 
March 31, 2025, were at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business. The 
Company has not entered into transactions with the Promoters, Directors and Key  
Managerial Personnel and other related parties, which may have potential conflict of 
interest with the Company and its subsidiaries at large. The transactions with the 
related parties have been disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
ii. The financial statements (both standalone and consolidated) have been prepared in 

accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards. 
 
iii. The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism to report concerns 

about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of our code of 
conduct and confirms that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit 
Committee. 

 
iv. Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading in the securities of the Company is available 

on the website of the Company at www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com. 
 

v. In accordance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Company has 
formulated the Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries, which is available on 
the website of the Company at www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com.  
 

vi. The details of the material subsidiaries of the Company as required under the 
Listing Regulations are as under:- 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the  
Subsidiary 

Details of Incorporation Details of Statutory Auditors as 
on March 31, 2025 
 

Place Date Name Date of 
appointment 

 
1 Edelweiss Rural & 

Corporate Services 
Limited 
 

Mumbai October 17, 
2006 

M/s. Nangia & Co.  
LLP 

September 28, 
2023  

2 ECL Finance Limited Mumbai July 18, 2005 M/s. G. K Choksi & 
Co. 

September 18, 
2024 

3 Nido Home Finance 
Limited 

Mumbai May 30, 2008 M/s. MGB & Co. 
LLP  

June 26, 2024 

 
vii. There have been no instances where the Board has not accepted recommendations of 

any Committee of the Board, during the financial year.  
 

viii. M/s. Tambi & Jaipurkar, Chartered Accountants, the statutory auditors of the 
Company, were paid the  consolidated amount of Rs. 1.16 million (including 
certification fees and out of pocket expenses of Rs. 0.11 million) by the Company for 
all the services provided by them during the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

 



 

 

ix. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

 
a) Number of complaints filed during the Financial Year: Nil 

 
b) Number of complaints disposed of during the Financial Year: Nil 

 
c) Number of complaints pending as on end of the Financial Year: Nil. 

 
x. The Company has adopted the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of 

Schedule II of the Listing Regulations – the financial statements are accompanied 
with an unmodified audit report. 
 

xi. The disclosures on loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in 
which directors are interested are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

 

xii. During the period under review, the Company had not raised any funds through 
preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement. 
 

 

X. Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed entities  
 

There is no agreement impacting the management and control of the Company or 
impose any restriction or create any liability upon the Company. 

 
 
XI. CEO / CFO Certificate 

 
The Executive Director and CFO have certified to the Board, the requirements of the 
Listing Regulations, with regard to financial statements. 

 
XII. Compliance Certificate 

 
Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, a certificate issued by M/s. Sahani & Kothari 
Associates, Company Secretaries, certifying the compliance by the Company with 
the provisions of the Corporate Governance forms part of this Report. 
 

Address for correspondence: 
 

For any assistance, request or instruction regarding transfer or transmission of securities, 
dematerialisation of securities, change of address, non-receipt of annual report, dividend 
warrant and any other query relating to the securities of the Company, the investors may write 
to: 

The Company Secretary 
Edel Finance Company Limited 
Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, 
Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098. 
Tel: +91 22 4079 5199 
Email: cs@edelweissfin.com 
Website: 
www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com 

MUFG Intime India Private
Limited  
C 101,  Embassy, 247 Park,  
L.B.S Marg, 
Vikhroli (West),  
Mumbai - 400 083. 
Tel: +91 81081 16767 
Email: 
rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com 
Website: 
https://in.mpms.mufg.com 

KFin Technologies Limited 
Selenium Tower B, 
Plot Nos. 31&32, 
Gachibowli, Financial District, 
Nanakramguda,  
Hyderabad -500 032 
Tel: +91 40 6716 2222  
Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com 
Website: www.kfintech.com 

 



 

 

Declaration by the Directors under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 regarding adherence to the Code of Conduct 

 
In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
it is hereby confirmed that for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Directors and the 
Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of 
Conduct. 

 

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 
Edel Finance Company Limited 

 
 
 
 
 
Mumbai, May 9, 2025 

Vidya Shah                         Ananya Suneja 
Executive Director             Executive Director & CFO  
DIN: 00274831                    DIN: 07297081 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the Members of Edel Finance Company Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Edel Finance Company Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as “ the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together 
referred to as “the Group”) and its associate companies comprising of the Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 
2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the Consolidated Cash 
Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “ the Consolidated Financial Statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the 

consideration of reports of other auditors on Separate Financial Statements and on the other financial information of the 

subsidiaries and associate companies, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required 

by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“ the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group 

and its associates as at March 31, 2025, their Consolidated profit including other comprehensive loss, their Consolidated 

Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), 

as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 

‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are 

independent of the Group and its associates in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained       is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 

 

 

mailto:info.tambiandjaipurkar@gmail.com


Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed 

the matter is provided in that context. 

 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We 

have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the 

performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements. The results of audit procedures performed by us and by other auditors of 

components not audited by us, as reported by them in their audit reports furnished to us by the management, including 

those procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

 

Key audit matters 

 

How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Impairment of receivables from financing and other business 

The Group’s impairment provision for receivables from 

financing business is based on the expected credit loss 

approach laid down under Ind AS 109.  

Ind AS 109 requires the Group to provide for 

impairment of its financial assets as at the reporting 

date using the expected credit loss (ECL) approach. 

ECL involves an estimation of probability - weighted 

loss on financial instruments over their life, considering 

reasonable and supportable information about past 

events, current conditions, and forecasts of future 

economic conditions which could impact the credit 

quality of the Group’s financial assets (loan portfolio).  
In the process, a significant degree of judgement has 

been applied by the management for: 

a) Staging of financial assets (i.e. classification 

in ‘significant increase in credit risk’ (“SICR”) 

and ‘default’ categories);  

b) Grouping of the loan portfolio under 

homogenous pools in order to determine 

probability of default on a collective basis;  

c) Assigning internal rating grades to 

customers for which external rating is not 

available;  

d) Calibrating external ratings-linked 

probability of default to align with past 

default rates;  

e) Applying assumptions regarding the 

probability of various scenarios and 

The audit procedures, including those reported in the 

auditor’s report of respective subsidiary companies, 

comprised the following: 

• Read and assessed the Group’s accounting 

policy for impairment of financial assets and its 

compliance with Ind AS 109 and the governance 

framework approved by the Board of Directors 

pursuant to Reserve Bank of India guidelines 

issued on March 13, 2020.  

• Tested the design and operating effectiveness of 

the controls for staging of loans based on their 

past-due status. Tested samples of performing 

(stage 1) loans to assess whether any loss 

indicators were present requiring them to be 

classified under stage 2 or 3.  

• Performed procedures to test the inputs used in 

the ECL computation, on a sample basis. 

• Tested assumptions used by the management in 

determining the overlay for macro - economic 

factors. 

• Assessed the additional considerations applied 

by the management for staging of loans as SICR 

or default categories in view of Company’s policy 

on OTR. 

• Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation 

of ECL provision performed by the Company in 

spreadsheets. 

 



 

Key audit matters 

 

How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

discounting rates for different loan products;  

f) Estimation of management overlay for 

macro - economic factors bearing a 

correlation with the credit quality of the 

loans. 

 

In view of such high degree of management’s 

judgement involved in estimation of ECL, it is 

considered as a key audit matter.  

The reliability and security of IT systems play a key role 

in the financial reporting process of the Group. The 

Group’s key financial accounting and reporting 

processes are highly automated, whereby any gaps in 

the IT control environment could result in a material 

misstatement of the financial accounting and reporting 

records.  
Therefore, the assessment of the general IT controls 

and the application controls specific to the accounting 

and preparation of financial information is considered 

to be a key audit matter. 

IT systems and controls 

 

The reliability and security of IT systems play a key role 

in the financial reporting process of the Group. The 

Group’s key financial accounting and reporting 

processes are highly automated, whereby any gaps in 

the IT control environment could result in a material 

misstatement of the financial accounting and reporting 

records. 

 

Therefore, the assessment of the general IT controls 

and the application controls specific to the accounting 

and preparation of financial information is considered 

to be a key audit matter. 

 

The audit procedures assisted by our IT 
specialists, including those reported in the auditor’s 
report of respective subsidiary companies, 
comprised the following: 

• Tested the design and operating effectiveness 

of the Company’s IT access controls over the 

information systems that are important to 

financial reporting and various interfaces, 

configuration and other identified application 

controls. 

• Tested IT general controls (logical access, 

changes management and aspects of IT 

operational controls). This included testing 

requests for access to systems were reviewed 

and authorized. 

• Tested the periodic review of access rights. 

Also tested requests of changes to systems for 

approval and authorization. 

• In addition to the above, tested the design and 

operating effectiveness of certain automated 

controls that were considered as key internal 

controls. 



 

Key audit matters 

 

How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

• We have relied on SOC-2 type II report 

provided by vendor for oracle fusion to ensure 

compliance with audit trail. 

• Tested the design and operating effectiveness 

of compensating controls in case deficiencies 

were identified and, where necessary, 

extended the scope of our substantive audit 

procedures. 

 

  We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 
The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual report, but does not include the 

Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon, The Holding Company’s Annual report is expected 

to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance   conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial 

Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated 

Financial Statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 

position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and 

consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 

of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of 

Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and of its 

associates and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial      statements by the 

Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 

the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associates to continue 

as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group and its associates or to cease operations, or has 

no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are also responsible 

for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates. 

 



                 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statement. 

 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

 

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 

 

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 

a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 

the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 

within the Group and its associates of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the 

Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 

audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we 

are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which 

have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and 

performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the 

Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and are 

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 



public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 

the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

 

Other Matter 

 
We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of: 

15 subsidiaries, whose financial statements include total assets of Rs. 23,081.87 Crores as at 31 March 2025 and 

total revenue of Rs. 3,457.94 Crores and net cash inflows of Rs. 859.58 Crores for the year ended on that date. These 

financial statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other 

financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. 

2 associate companies forming part of the Group, whose financial statements include Group’s share of net profit after 

tax of Rs. 391.71 crores and Group’s share of total comprehensive income of Rs. 394.79 crores from April 1, 2024 to 

March 31, 2025 as considered in the consolidated financial statement, whose financial statement, other financial 

information have been audited by other auditors and whose report have been furnished to us by the Management. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included 

in respect of these subsidiaries and associate companies, and our report in terms of sub- sections (3) of Section 143 

of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate companies, is based solely on the report(s) 

of such other auditors. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of 

the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information certified by the Management. 

The comparative financial information of the Company for year ended March 31, 2024 were audited by predecessor 

auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those Consolidated Financial Statements dated 10th May, 2024. 

Accordingly, we do not express any opinion, as the case may be, on the figures reported in the Consolidated Financial 

Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.  

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1.       As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“ the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India 

in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the 

other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary and associate 

companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the “ Annexure 1” a statement 

on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order. 
 

2.       As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on 

separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries and associates, as noted in the ‘other 

matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and explanations 

which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated 

Financial Statements; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidation of the financial 

statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reports of the other auditors; 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 

Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 

Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 



(e) On the basis of the confirmation received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2025 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed 

under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiaries and associate companies, none of the directors of the Group’s 

companies and its associates, incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a 

director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of 

the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and its associate companies, incorporated in India, and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report; 

(g) In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the subsidiaries and associate 

companies, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid / provided by the Holding 

Company, its subsidiaries and associate companies incorporated in India to their directors in accordance with the 

provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act; 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit  and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial 

statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries and associates, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ 

paragraph: 

i) The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial 

position of the Group and its associate companies in its Consolidated Financial Statements – Refer Note 50 to 

the Consolidated Financial Statements; 

ii) The Group and its associated companies did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

iii) There have been no amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Holding Company, its subsidiaries and its associate companies, incorporated in India during the year ended 

March 31, 2025; 

iv) a. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associate companies which 

are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have 

represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associate companies respectively that, to 

the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 57.A to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no 

funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and associates to or in any other 

person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or any of such 

subsidiaries and associates (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 

the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associate companies which 

are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have 

represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associates respectively that, to the best of its 

knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 57.B to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no 

funds have been received by the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and associates from 

any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and associates shall, 

whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 

or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

c.  Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances 

performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries and associates which are companies 

incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or 

other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-

clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement. 



v) The final and interim dividend declared and paid by its subsidiaries, incorporated in India, during the year is in 

accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of dividend. 

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company.  

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective auditors of the 

subsidiaries and associates whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, the Holding Company, 

its subsidiaries and associates have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has 

a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 

transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance 

of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally the audit trail has been preserved by the Companies as per 

the statutory requirement for record retention. 

 
 
 
 
For Tambi and Jaipurkar  
Chartered Accountants  

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 115954W 

 

 
                       
  

CA Vinod Tambi  

Partner  

Membership Number: 036972  

UDIN:  25036972BMIAKJ1110 

Place: Mumbai  

Date: 9th May, 2025  
  



Annexure-1: Referred to in Paragraph Under the Heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements” of Our Report of Even Date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Edel Finance 
Company Limited 
 

 
Based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the 

other financial information of the subsidiary and associate companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other 

Matter’ paragraph we state that: 

 3(xxi) There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in their report on Companies (Auditors 

Report) Order, 2020 of the companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements except for following where the 

respective auditor have reported unfavorable or adverse remarks in their audit report to the principal auditor. 

 

Name CIN Holding 

Company/ 

Subsidiary/ 

Associate 

Clause number of the 

CARO  report which is 

unfavorable or adverse 

Edel Finance Company Limited U65920MH1989PLC053909 Holding xvii 

ECap Equities Limited U74900MH2008PLC287466 Subsidiary iii(c), iii(d) and xvii 

ECap Securities and Investments 
Limited 

U67190TG2008PLC057122 Subsidiary xvii 

Edelcap Securities Limited U67120MH2008PLC422229 Subsidiary xvii 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited U67120MH1997PLC285490 Subsidiary iii(c) and iii(d) 

Edelweiss Investment Adviser 
Limited 

U74140TG2008PLC120334 Subsidiary iii(c), iii(d) and xvii 

ECL Finance Limited U65990MH2005PLC154854 Subsidiary iii(c), iii(d) and xvii 

NIDO Home Finance Limited U65922MH2008PLC182906 Subsidiary iii(c) and iii(d) 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate 
Services Limited 

U45201TG2006PLC078157 Subsidiary iii(c), iii(d) and xvii 

Comtrade Commodities Services 
Limited 

U66990GJ1995PLC025267 Subsidiary xvii 

Edelweiss Securities and 
Investments Private Limited 

U65990MH2009PTC344641 Associate iii(c), iii(d), ix(d) and xvii 

Edelweiss Global Wealth 
Management Limited 

U67100MH2007PLC353035 Associate xvii 

 
 

For Tambi and Jaipurkar  
Chartered Accountants  

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 115954W 

 

 
                       
  

CA Vinod Tambi  

Partner  

Membership Number: 036972  

UDIN:  25036972BMIAKJ1110 

Place: Mumbai  

Date: 9th May, 2025 
  



Annexure-2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
Edel Finance Company Limited 

  

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 
In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Edel Finance Company Limited (hereinafter 

referred to as the “Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal 

financial controls with reference  to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 

(the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together  referred to as “ the Group”) and its associates, which are 

companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associates, which are companies 

incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to 

Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued 

by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that   we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

Consolidated Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 

controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 

controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms 

of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 
  

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statement is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 

with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 

assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of  management and directors of the 

company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 

use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 



 

 

 

 

Annexure-2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
Edel Finance Company Limited (Continued) 
 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 

 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 

reference to Consolidated Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 

controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the Group and its associates, which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all 

material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and such 

internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 

31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering 

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance note issued by the ICAI. 

Other Matters 
 
Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 

controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company, in so far as it relates to these 

11 subsidiaries and 2 associates, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports 

of the auditors of such subsidiaries and associates incorporated in India. 

 

 
For Tambi and Jaipurkar  
Chartered Accountants  

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 115954W 

 

 
                       
  

CA Vinod Tambi  

Partner  

Membership Number: 036972  

UDIN:  25036972BMIAKJ1110 

Place: Mumbai  
Date: 9th May, 2025 







































































































































































































































Form AOC - 1

Part "A" Subsidiaries *

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Name of the Subsidiary Company ECL Finance Limited
Nido Home Finance 

Limited

Edelweiss Rural & 

Corporate Services 

Limited

Allium Corporate 

Services Private 

Limited 

Comtrade 

Commodities 

Services Limited

Reporting period 2024-25 2024-25 2024-25 2024-25 2024-25

Reporting currency INR INR INR INR INR

Exchange rate -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Paid-up Equity Share Capital ** 2,700.20                    693.50 13,175.28 53.13                         325.00                       

Reserves of the Subsidiary 13,319.00                  7,588.50                    (7,081.39)                   521.94                       (298.10)                      

Total Assets of the Subsidiary 80,788.50                  40,516.18                  14,407.59                  656.66                       36.34                         

Total Liabilities of the Subsidiary 64,769.30                  32,234.18                  8,313.70                    81.59                         9.44                           

Investments 54,058.80                  1,522.21                    2,909.04                    -                             -                             

Total Turnover 6,455.30                    5,206.26                    2,674.94                    161.24                       0.75                           

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 563.30                       194.83                       (2,361.56)                   81.93                         (6.25)                          

Provision for taxation 100.30                       8.50                           (1,451.10)                   21.85                         0.13                           

Profit/(Loss) after taxation 463.00                       186.33                       (910.46)                      60.08                         (6.38)                          

Proposed dividend -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

% of shareholding 79.19% 95.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

* Subsidiary as defined under the Companies Act, 2013

** Includes convertible instruments

Notes:

2. Name of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NIL

Edel Finance Company Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Vidya Shah Ananya Suneja

Executive Director Executive Director & CFO

DIN: 00274831 DIN: 07297081

Sd/-

Christina D’souza

Company Secretary

Mumbai

09 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries or associate companies or joint ventures

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations:  NIL



Form AOC - 1

Part "B" Associate and Joint Venture *

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Edelweiss 

Securities and 

Investments 

Private 

Limited

31-Mar-25

          2,94,473 

5,968.05         

48.00%

No Control

1,088.73         

            (301.61)

(326.74)           

* Associate and Joint Venture as defined under the Companies Act, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Edel Finance Company Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Vidya Shah Ananya Suneja

Executive Director Executive Director & CFO

DIN: 00274831 DIN: 07297081

Sd/-

Christina D’souza

Company Secretary

Mumbai

09 May 2025

Share of Associate held by the Company on the year end

Last audited Balance Sheet date

Amount of Investment in Associates ( Rs. in millions)

Name of the Associates/Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies

and Joint Ventures

Number of shares

Extent of Holding %

Profit / Loss for the year considered in consolidation (Rs in million)

Profit / Loss for the year not considered in consolidation (Rs in million)

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet  (Rs in 

million)



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Edel Finance Company Limited 

Corporate Identity Number: U65920MH1989PLC053909  

Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 



 
TAMBI & JAIPURKAR 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

411, Atlanta Estate, Opp Westin Hotel, 
Goregaon (East), Mumbai-400063 

Ph No: 9595119777 
E-Mail: info.tambiandjaipurkar@gmail.com 

 
 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the Members of Edel Finance Company Limited 

 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Edel Finance Company Limited 
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of 
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a 
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as 
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2025, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity 
for the year ended on that date. 

 
Basis for Opinion 

 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

 
Key Audit Matters 

 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter 
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.  



We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
standalone financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, 
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, 
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion 
on the accompanying standalone financial statements. 

 
 

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 
(a) Impairment of investments in subsidiary and other group companies (as described in Note 10.A, 
10.B and 10.C of the Standalone financial statements) 
The Company is a Core Investment 
Company (CIC) registered with the 
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and has 
investments in subsidiary amounting 
to Rs. 59,673.89/- million in form of 
equity shares, compulsorily 
convertible  preference  shares and 
compulsorily convertible debentures. 
The Company has also invested in 
form of equity shares of Rs. 9,650.60/- 
million in other group companies 
These investments are valued at cost 
and are required to be assessed for 
impairment in accordance with Ind AS 
36, when any indicators of impairment 
are observed. 
In carrying out such impairment 
assessment, a significant judgement of 
the management is involved in 
estimating the investee company’s 
“value in use" in accordance with Ind 
AS 36. Estimation of the value in use 
requires the management to apply 
appropriate assumptions with respect 
to the growth rates for future cash flow 
projections of the investee company 
and discount rates for determining 
present value of such cash flows. 
We have considered impairment 
testing of Investments in subsidiary 
and other group companies as a key 
audit matter in view of the high degree 
of management’s judgement involved 
in estimation of the recoverable 
amount of investments in subsidiaries 
and the inherent uncertainty relating 
to the assumptions supporting such 
estimates. 

Our audit procedures included considering the 
appropriateness of the processes laid down by the 
management for assessment of impairment in the 
value of investments in subsidiary and other group 
companies combined with procedures performed as 
follows: 

 We have considered management’s 
assessment of impairment wherever 
considered necessary and assessed 
whether any impairment indicators 
existed for investment in individual 
subsidiary and other group companies.

 We traced the net-worth of the individual 
subsidiary and other group companies from 
their audited financial statements.

 We assessed the disclosures relating to 
investments in subsidiary and other group 
companies included in the Standalone 
financial Statements in accordance with the 
requirements of Ind AS

 
 

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.  



Other Information 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us 
after the date of this auditor’s report. 

 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 
 

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes 
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended/ Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial statements. 

 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 



• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Other Matter 
 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, included in these 
financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified 
opinion on those statements on 10th May, 2024 



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, we give in the 
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

 
b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 

as it appears from our examination of those books; 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ; 

 
e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

 
f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company with reference to these standalone financial statements and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report; 

g. In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid / 
provided for by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Companies Act. 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
standalone financial statements – Refer Note 37 to the standalone financial statements; 

 
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses; 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

 
 

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than 
as disclosed in the note 43 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds by the Company to or in any other persons or entities including foreign 
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 



entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries 

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than 
as disclosed in the note 43 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been 
received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and 

 
c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

 
v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company. 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not 
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally the audit 
trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirement for record 
retention. 

 
 

 
For Tambi and Jaipurkar 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 115954W 

 

 
CA Vinod Tambi 
Partner 
Membership Number: 036972 
UDIN: 25036972BMIAEP7679 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 9th May, 2025 



Annexure 1 Referred to in Paragraph 1 Under the Heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements” of Our Report of Even Date 

Re: Edel Finance Company Limited 

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets. 

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to 
a regular program of verification according to which verification is done every 3 years which, 
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its 
assets. 

 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company 

examined by us, the title deeds of the immovable properties included in property, plant and 
equipment are held in the name of the company 

 
(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during 

the year. 
 

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been 
initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder. 

 
ii. (a) Based on our examination of documents and records, the Company did not own any physical 

inventory at any time during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 

 
(b) During the year, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 

5 crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current 
assets and accordingly, the requirement to report under this clause is not applicable to the 
company. 

 
iii. (a) Company is a Core Investment Company and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the 

order is not applicable 
 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the loans given are, 
prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, the repayment of principal and 
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular 

 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect 
of loans given. 

 
(e) The Company is a Core Investment Company and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the 

order is not applicable. 



(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records, the Company has not given any loans either repayable on demand or without 
specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

 
iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of 
loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable. 

v. The company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 
73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Companies Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent 
notified. 

 
vi. Having regard to the nature of the Companies’ business activities, reporting under clause 

CARO 2020 relating to maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act is not 
applicable to the Company. 

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company 
examined by us, in our opinion, the company has generally been regular in depositing the 
undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, income tax, cess, goods and service tax 
and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company 

examined by us, Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not 
been deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes are given below: 

 

 
Name of 
Statue 

Nature of 
Dues 

Amount under 
dispute 
(in million) 

Amount 
paid 

Period to 
which it relates 
(Assessment Year) 

Forums where 
dispute is 
pending 

Income tax 
Act 1961 

Income Tax 123.97 37.68 2014-15 CIT(A) 

Income tax 
Act 1961 

Income Tax 0.34 - 2016-17 Assessing 
Officer 

Income tax 
Act 1961 

Income Tax 73.44 - 2019-20 Assessing 
Officer 

Income tax 
Act 1961 

Income Tax 294.46 - 2020-21 CIT(A) 

Income tax 
Act 1961 

Income Tax 82.39 - 2021-22 CIT(A) 

 
 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company 
examined by us, there is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in 
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books 
of account. 

 
ix. (a) According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and explanation 

given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in 
the payment of interest to any lender as at the balance sheet date. 



(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit 
procedures, we report that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank 
or financial institution or government or any government authority. 

 
(c) According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and 

explanation given to us, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were 
obtained. 

 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed 

by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report 
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the 
company. 

 
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of 

the financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any 
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. 

 
(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, 

we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities 
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

 
x. (a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 

(Including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause (x)(a) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 
(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment of preference shares during the year. 

Accordingly, the requirements of Section 42 of the Act are not applicable to the company. 
 

xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out 
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of 
material fraud by the company or on the company, noticed or reported during the year, nor 
have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out 
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, report under section 143(12) of the Act, in Form 
ADT-4 was not required to be filed. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause (xi)(b) of the 
Order are not applicable to the company. 

 
(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out 

in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no 
whistle- blower complaints have been received during the year by the company. Accordingly, 
the reporting under Clause (xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

 
xii. As the company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2024 are not applicable to it, the 

provisions of Clause (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the company. 



xiii. The company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting 
Standard (Standalone Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of 
the Act. 

 
xiv. a) In ouropinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there is internal 

audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business and 
 

b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by 
us. 

 
xv. The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons 

connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (xv) of the Order are not applicable 
to the company 

 
xvi. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company being 

a CIC company has registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
 

(b) The company has conducted non-banking financial Core Investment company (CIC) activities 
with a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve 
Bank of India Act 1934 during the year. 

 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on books and records 

verified by us the Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India and the Company continues to fulfill the criteria of a CIC. 

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, 
the Group does not have any other CIC other than the Company. 

 
xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year as compared to cash 

loss of Rs 304.94 crores in the immediately preceding financial year. 
 

xviii. During the year there was a change in auditor of the company as the tenure of the previous 
auditor had come to an end under the provisions of the act. No concern raised by the previous 
auditor. 

 
xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratio 

ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting 
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any 
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based 
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 
will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 



xx. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no 
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. 
Accordingly, clauses (xx) (a) and (xx) (b) of the Order are not applicable. 

 
xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of 

standalone financial statement of the Company. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the 
said clause has been included in this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
For Tambi and Jaipurkar 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 115954W 

 

 
CA Vinod Tambi 
Partner 
Membership Number: 036972 
UDIN: 25036972BMIAEP7679 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 9th May, 2025



Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Standalone Financial Statements 
of Edel Finance Company Limited 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to standalone 
financial statements of Edel Finance Company Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial 
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statement included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements 
 

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 



with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

 
Opinion 

 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note issued by ICAI. 

 
For Tambi and Jaipurkar 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 115954W 

 
 

CA Vinod Tambi 
Partner 
Membership Number: 036972 
UDIN: 25036972BMIAEP7679 
Place of Signature: Mumbai 
Date: 9th May, 2025 

































































































































































 

Edel Finance Company Limited 
Corporate Identity Number:  U65920MH1989PLC053909 
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098. Tel No.: +91 22 4079 5199 

        Email: cs@edelweissfin.com Website: www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com 
 
 

NOTICE OF THE 36TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 36TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE 
MEMBERS OF EDEL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY,  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025 AT 4:00 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT 
EDELWEISS HOUSE, OFF. C.S.T. ROAD, KALINA, MUMBAI – 400 098, TO TRANSACT THE 
FOLLOWING BUSINESS: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. To consider and adopt:- 
 

a. the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025, together with the Report of the Board and the Auditors 
thereon; and 

 
b. the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2025, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Ananya Suneja (DIN: 07297081), who retires by 
rotation and, being eligible, offered herself for re-appointment. 

 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS:  

 
3. Appointment of Mr. H.S. Upendra Kamath (DIN: 02648119) as an Independent 

Director 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following 
Resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED that Mr. H.S. Upendra Kamath (DIN: 02648119), who was appointed as 
an Additional Director of the Company with effect from September 29, 2025, by the 
Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the Board) and who holds office upto 
the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and in respect of whom the Company has received 
a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his 
candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as 
a Director of the Company. 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read 
with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) thereto or 
re-enactment(s) thereof from time to time) and the applicable provisions of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. H.S. Upendra Kamath (DIN: 02648119), who 
will be attaining the age of 75 years, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 
Director of the Company to hold office for the term of 5 years from the conclusion of 
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the forthcoming Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the Annual General 
Meeting to be held in the year 2030. 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board be and is hereby authorised on behalf of the 
Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute 
discretion, deem necessary or expedient in the interest of the Company and with 
power on behalf of the Company to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that 
may arise in this regard without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or 
approval of the Members of the Company.” 

 
         For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

                                                                                                    EDEL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED 
 

 

 
Tarun Khurana   

Company Secretary  
(Membership No. A12344) 

 
Mumbai, September 29, 2025 

 
Registered Office:  
Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road,  
Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098.  
 
CIN:  U65920MH1989PLC053909 
Email: cs@edelweissfin.com  
Website: www.edelfinance.edelweissfin.com  
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NOTES: 
 
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED 

TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND 
SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES, IN 
ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY NOT LESS 
THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING. 

 
A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in 
aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is 
proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital 
of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any 
other person or shareholder. 
 

2. The Annual General Meeting (AGM)/Meeting is convened at a shorter notice after 
obtaining the necessary consent of the Members as required under the Companies Act, 
2013. 
 

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the 
Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution 
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

 
4. Pursuant to the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India, information in respect of the Director seeking 
appointment / re-appointment at the Meeting is given in the Annexure to the Notice. 

 
5. The Statutory Registers of the Company will be available for inspection by the Members 

at the AGM of the Company during the business hours on all working days up to the 
date of the AGM. 

 
6. A Route Map along with Prominent Landmark for easy location to reach the venue of 

Meeting is annexed herewith. 
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Annexure to the Notice dated September 29, 2025 

Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
 
 
Item No. 3: 
 
 
Based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the “Committee”), 
the Board of Directors of the Company (the Board) at its Meeting held on September 29, 2025, had 
appointed Mr. H.S. Upendra Kamath (DIN: 02648119) as an Additional Director of the Company. As 
per the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder (the 
Act), Mr. Kamath holds office up to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM).  
Mr. Kamath was also appointed as an Independent Director for a period of 5 years with effect from 
September 29, 2025. The Company has received a notice from a Member proposing the candidature of 
Mr. Kamath as an Independent Director of the Company. 
 
 
A brief profile of Mr. H. S. Upendra Kamath is as under: 
 
Mr. Kamath is a Commerce Graduate and a Certified Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers (CAIIB)  
from Indian Institute of Banking and Finance. 
 
Mr. Kamath has more than 5 decades of experience in the field of Banking. Mr. Kamath joined Union 
Bank of India in 1973 as a Probationary Officer and worked in various capacities including the 
position of General Manager till the year 2009. He was an Executive Director of Canara Bank from 
2009 to 2011 and was the Chairman and Managing Director of Vijaya Bank from 2011 to 2013.  He has 
also served as Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of Tamil Nadu Mercantile Bank Limited 
from 2014 to 2017. 
 
Mr. Kamath has consented to act as an Independent Director of the Company and has submitted the 
disclosures as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations) 
and a declaration that he meets the criteria for appointment as an Independent Director as prescribed 
under Section 149 of the Act and the Listing Regulations, as applicable, and that he is not disqualified 
from being appointed as a Director of the Company as per the provisions of the Act and the Listing 
Regulations. Mr. Kamath is not debarred from being appointed as a Director by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India and any other authority. 
 
Mr. Kamath is a person of integrity and has relevant skills, experience and expertise in the area of 
Banking and Financial Service sector, for him to be appointed as an Independent Director on the 
Board of Directors of the Company. The Board of Directors of the Company is of the view that  
Mr. Kamath possesses and has the requisite skills and capabilities, as identified and required for an 
Independent Director of the Company. 
 
Based on the recommendations of the Committee and considering his qualifications and experience, 
the Board recommends the appointment of Mr. Kamath as an Independent Director for a term of 5 
years from the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM until the conclusion of the AGM to be held in the 
year 2030.  
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Mr. Kamath does not hold any shares in the Company. 
 
Mr. Kamath is not related to any Promoter, Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. 
 
The Board recommends the passing of Resolution as set out in Item No. 3 of the Notice as a Special 
Resolution. 
 
Except Mr. Kamath, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are in 
any way, directly or indirectly, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the Resolution set 
out at Item No. 3 of the Notice. 
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Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the 36th Annual General 

Meeting pursuant to Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2): 
 

Particulars  
 

Ms. Ananya Suneja 
 

Mr. H.S. Upendra Kamath  

DIN 
 

07297081  
 

02648119 

Date of Birth June 13, 1973 December 14, 1953 
 

Age 52 years 72 years  
 

Date of first Appointment May 24, 2023  September 29, 2025  
 

Experience  Ms. Ananya Suneja has over 23 
years of work experience, 
mainly in Banking and Financial 
Services. She has been with 
Edelweiss group since 2018. 
Prior to joining Edelweiss 
group, Ms. Suneja was 
associated with Deutsche Bank 
(DB) and also held senior 
Finance and related roles at 
General Electric (GE) and JP 
Morgan Chase India over the 
course of her career. Ms. Suneja 
is Chief Financial Officer of 
Edelweiss Financial Services 
Limited, the holding company. 
 

Mr. Kamath has more than 5 
decades of experience in the field 
of Banking. Mr. Kamath joined 
Union Bank of India in 1973 as a 
Probationary Officer and worked 
in various capacities including the 
position of General Manager till 
the year 2009. He was an 
Executive Director of Canara Bank 
from 2009 to 2011 and was the 
Chairman and Managing Director 
of Vijaya Bank from 2011 to 2013.  
He has also served as Managing 
Director & Chief Executive Officer 
of Tamil Nadu Mercantile Bank 
Limited from 2014 to 2017. 
 

Qualifications Ms. Suneja has completed her 
MBA (Finance) from SIBM, Pune 
and holds a BE (Electrical) 
degree  

Mr. Kamath is a Commerce 
Graduate and a Certified 
Associate of Indian Institute of 
Bankers (CAIIB)  from Indian 
Institute of Banking and Finance. 
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Terms and Conditions of 
Appointment/Re-
appointment 

Appointed as an Executive 
Director, liable to retire by rotation. 

Appointed as an Independent 
Director for a period of 5 years 

   
Remuneration to be paid Nil, Ms. Suneja draws 

remuneration from Edelweiss 
Financial Services Limited, 
Holding Company.  

Entitled for sitting fees for 
attending meetings of the Board 
& Committees and commission, if 
any  

   
Remuneration last drawn Nil Nil 

 
No. of Board Meetings 4 Not Applicable 
Attended during the FY 
2024-25   

 

   
Directorship in other 
Companies (Public 
Limited Companies) 

1. ECap Equities Limited 
 

2. Nuvama Custodial 
Services Limited 
 

3. Mandala Organics Private 
Limited 
 

4. EAAA India Alternatives 
Limited 
  
 

1. Online PSB Loans Limited 
 

2. S.G Finserve Limited 
 

3. Kisan Mouldings Limited 
 

4. SREE UGCL Projects 
Limited 
 

5. APL Apollo Tubes 
Limited 
 

6. Zuno General Insurance 
Limited 
 

7. Sharda Cropchem Limited 
 
 

Name of listed entities 
from which the person 
has resigned in the past 
three years 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate 
Services Limited (a High Value 
Debt Listed Entity as defined 
under the Listing Regulations)  

None  

Membership/ 
Chairmanship of 
Committees of other public 
limited companies (Audit 
Committee and 
Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee) 

None  Audit Committee:  
 

1. Online PSB Loans Limited 
– Chairman 
 

2. S.G Finserve Limited – 
Chairman  
 

3. Sharda Cropchem Limited 
– Member  
 

4. SREE UGCL Projects 
Limited – Member  
 

5. Zuno General Insurance 
Limited – Member  
 

6. APL Apollo Tubes 
Limited – Member  
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Stakeholders Relationship  
Committee:  
 
Nil  
 

Relationship with other 
Directors and with Key 
Managerial Personnel of 
the Company 
 

None None 

No. of shares held in the 
Company 

None None 
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PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
Edel Finance Company Limited 
Corporate Identity No. (CIN): U65920MH1989PLC053909 
Registered office: Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, 
Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098. 
 
Folio No./ Depository A/c No. _____________________ 

 
I/We, being the member (s) of ……………………………………… Shares of the above named company, 
hereby appoint: 
 

1. Name  
 

2. Name  
 

3. Name  

Address  
 

Address  
 

Address  
 

E-mail Id 
 

E-mail Id E-mail Id 
 

Signature  
 
……………………………….….,   
or failing him 

Signature  
 
……………………………..……….., 
or failing him 

Signature  
 
…………………………………. 

 
 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 36th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. at the Registered Office of 
the Company at Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098 and at any adjournment thereof 
in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:  
 

Sr. 
No.  

Resolution For Against 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
1. To consider and adopt:- 

 
a. the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2025, together with the Report of the Board 
and the Auditors thereon; 
 

b. the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with the Report of 
the Auditors thereon. 

  

2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Ananya Suneja (DIN: 07297081) who 
retires by rotation and, being eligible, offered herself for re-appointment. 

  

 Special Business    

3. To appoint Mr. H.S. Upendra Kamath (DIN: 02648119) as an Independent 
Director 

  

 
Signed this………………………. day of…………………………. 2025.   Affix Revenue Stamp 

 
 
Signature of shareholder:_________________ 
 
 
Signature of Proxy holder(s):____________________ 
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.  
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Edel Finance Company Limited 
Corporate Identity No. (CIN): U65920MH1989PLC053909 

Registered office: Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098 
 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
36th Annual General Meeting – Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 4:00 p.m.  

 
 
Folio No. /Client ID No./DP Id 
No. 
 
 

 

No. of shares  

 
I/we certify that I/we am/are a Registered Member/Authorised Representative of Registered Member 
under Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 /Proxy for Registered Member of Edel Finance Company 
Limited. 
 
I/we hereby record my/our presence at the 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 
Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at Edelweiss House, Off. 
C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098 and at any adjournment thereof. 
 
 
 
 
*Member’s/ Authorised 
Representative’s/ Proxy’s full name in block letters 
 
 
 
Member’s/Authorised Representative/ 
Proxy’s Signature 
 
 
 
 
Note: Please fill in this attendance slip and hand it over at the venue of the meeting.  
 
* Please strike off whichever is not applicable 
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Route Map of the 36th Annual General Meeting of Edel Finance Company Limited to be held on 
Tuesday, September 30, 2025 

AGM Venue: Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai – 400 098 

Landmark: – University of Mumbai, Kalina 
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